
MEETING: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
AND HEALTH)

DATE: Tuesday, 26th February 2019

TIME: 6.30 p.m.

VENUE: Committee Room, Town Hall, Bootle

Member

Councillor

Substitute

Councillor
Cllr. Catie Page (Chair)
Cllr. Marianne Welsh (Vice-Chair)
Cllr. Harry Bliss
Cllr. Anthony Carr
Cllr. Linda Cluskey
Cllr. Tony Dawson
Cllr. Mhairi Doyle
Cllr. Dr. John Pugh
Cllr. Diane Roscoe
Cllr. Bill Welsh
Brian Clark, Co-Optee
Roger Hutchings, Co-Optee

Cllr. Michael O'Brien
Cllr. Nina Killen
Cllr. Tony Brough
Cllr. Daniel Terence Lewis
Cllr. Clare Louise Carragher
Cllr. Iain Brodie - Browne
Cllr. Gordon Friel
Cllr. Lynne Thompson
Cllr. Michael Roche
Cllr. Veronica Webster

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Debbie Campbell, Senior Democratic Services 
Officer

Telephone: 0151 934 2254
Fax: 0151 934 2034
E-mail: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A

1.  Apologies for Absence

2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or personal interest arises, which is not 
already included in their Register of Members' Interests, to 
declare any interests that relate to an item on the agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, 
he/she must withdraw from the meeting room, including from 
the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any item 
of business in which he/she has an interest, except where 
he/she is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of a 
dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest he/she must 
seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or staff member 
representing the Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting room, including 
from the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an interest or whether 
the Member can remain in the meeting or remain in the 
meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

3.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 16)
Minutes of the meeting held on 8 January 2019.

4.  North West Ambulance Service - Data for Local Area (Pages 17 - 
20)

Briefing paper submitted by the North West Ambulance 
Service.

Stuart Ryall, Sector Manager for Sefton and John Collins, 
Consultant Paramedic for Sefton, to attend from the North 
West Ambulance Service.

5.  Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Update Report (Pages 21 - 
26)

Joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group.

6.  Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Health Provider 
Performance Dashboard

(Pages 27 - 
34)

Joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group.



7.  Cabinet Member Reports (Pages 35 - 
50)

Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer.

8.  Work Programme Key Decision Forward Plan (Pages 51 - 
66)

Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer.



This page is intentionally left blank



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL IN”.

41

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH)

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, SOUTHPORT
ON TUESDAY 8TH JANUARY, 2019

PRESENT: Councillor Page (in the Chair)
Councillor Marianne Welsh (Vice-Chair)
Councillors Bliss, Carr, Cluskey, Doyle, Pugh, 
Roscoe and Bill Welsh

ALSO PRESENT: Mr. B. Clark, Healthwatch
Mr. R. Hutchings, Healthwatch
Councillor Moncur, Cabinet Member – Health and 
Wellbeing
1 member of the public

36. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Cummins, Cabinet 
Member – Adult Social Care.

37. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal 
interests were received.

38. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 16 October 2018, be confirmed as 
a correct record.

39. NHS PLANNING GUIDANCE 

Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG) and NHS Southport and Formby CCG, gave a presentation 
on the NHS Long Term Plan that outlined the following:-

 The background to the matter;
 How the NHS Long Term Plan was developed;
 What the NHS Long Term Plan will deliver for patients;

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 8TH JANUARY, 2019

42

 Making sure everyone gets the best start in life;
 Delivering world class care for major health problems;
 Supporting people to age well;
 Delivering the ambitions of the NHS Long Term Plan;
 Doing things differently;
 Preventing illness and tackling health inequalities;
 Backing our workforce;
 Making better use of data and digital technology;
 Getting the most out of taxpayers’ investment in the NHS;
 Next steps for Sefton;
 What this means for staff, patients and the public; and
 How to find out more.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:-

 How did the NHS Long Term Plan link with other plans already in 
existence, such as preventing unnecessary hospitalisation of 
patients? Reference was also made to the NHS RightCare system.

 NHS RightCare looked at evidence to diagnose issues and identify 
opportunities. Both Sefton CCGs had peer groups which provided 
comparisons to identify any variants to the norm and develop 
solutions. An information session could be held on RightCare for 
Members of the Committee.

 The future for primary care appeared to depend on information 
technology and not everyone had access to this.
It was acknowledged that it was necessary to use and explore 
multiple methods in order to direct patients to the best place. 
Pharmacists also had an essential part to play in primary care and 
face to face interaction.

 Reference was made to staffing issues within the NHS and the 
pressures facing the workforce, including changes to nurse training. 
Factors such as student loans and the lack of a bursary were not 
encouraging the recruitment of student nurses.
The issue of the workforce was being considered across Cheshire 
and Merseyside collectively. There was some acknowledgement 
that progression within nursing had been lost and that nursing may 
have become too academic.

 Education was important in order to help individuals to help prevent 
and control conditions.
Small investments with individuals could produce long term gains.

 A number of figures were provided for major health problems 
nationally. Could the figures for Sefton be provided?
It was anticipated that further information on the NHS Long Term 
Plan and its implications for Sefton services would be submitted to 
the Committee in due course.

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 8TH JANUARY, 2019

43

 Reference was made to the aspiration within the NHS Long Term 
Plan to “give people more control over their own health and the care 
they receive”. It was considered that this approach would not work 
for all.
The Plan proposed offering choice back to individuals, rather than 
dictating what they should or should not do or making assumptions 
about what individuals wanted or needed.

 Despite the fact that the NHS Long Term Plan emphasised 
prevention, there was no mention of additional resources for the 
Public Health function and little mention of social care. In addition, a 
large proportion of the NHS workforce originated from within the EU 
and Brexit could present difficulties in recruitment in the future.
There was some acknowledgement that once the Plan was 
examined in detail, it could be difficult to deliver.

 Reference was made to the pharmaceutical industry and the cost of 
essential drugs and how this issue could be addressed.
The National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) 
provided national guidance and advice to improve health and social 
care and was standing firm on the costs associated with the 
pharmaceutical industry. This was addressed at NHS England level.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the presentation together with the information provided on the NHS 
Long Term Plan be noted; and

(2) the intention for further information on the NHS Long Term Plan and 
its implications for Sefton services to be submitted to the Committee 
in due course by the Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) and NHS Southport and Formby 
CCG, be noted.

40. MEDICINES MANAGEMENT IN SEFTON 

Further to Minutes Nod. 28 (2) (b) and 34 (2) of 16 October 2018, the 
Committee considered the joint report provided by the Head of Medicines 
Management, NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
and NHS Southport and Formby CCG, on medicines management in 
Sefton. The report introduced the matter; explained how pharmacy 
services were commissioned; set out details about the Sefton Medicines 
Management Team; together with details of key work undertaken. Links to 
additional information were also contained within the report.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:-

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 8TH JANUARY, 2019

44

 Could GP surgeries put up notices of the nearest available 
chemists?
Although GP surgeries could not promote specific chemists, as they 
were independent businesses, Practice Managers at GP surgeries 
tended to be aware of this information and could provide it to 
residents.

 What did “WTE” within the report mean?
Whole time equivalent.

 How would pharmacies evolve?
Skills required by pharmacists had evolved in that they were now 
required to have consultation and examination skills. There was 
also increased collaboration with care/nursing homes and social 
services.

 Reference was made to the number of prescription items dispensed 
in Sefton, together with the cost of drugs dispensed during 2017/18. 
Was data available to indicate whether these figures were 
acceptable, or whether there were variations in prescribing within 
Sefton?
Clinical leads worked alongside the Team in considering any 
variations and this data was reported to the CCG governing bodies. 
Information would be provided to the Senior Democratic Services 
Officer for circulation to Members of the Committee.

 How did the Minor Ailment Scheme (Care at the Chemist) work?
This scheme allowed residents to obtain medicines and advice for 
certain illnesses from local pharmacies without having to go to their 
GP first. Where residents did not pay for their prescriptions, they 
would not have to pay for any medicines supplied through the 
scheme.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the presentation together with the information provided on 
medicines management in Sefton be noted; and

(2) the Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG) and NHS Southport and Formby CCG be requested 
to provide additional information on any variations in data on the 
number of prescription items and the cost of drugs to the Senior 
Democratic Services Officer, for circulation to Members of the 
Committee.

41. DNA RATES IN PRIMARY CARE 

Further to Minute No. 34 (3) of 16 October 2018, Colette Riley, Practice 
Manager Lead, Southport and Formby Clinical Commissioning Group 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 8TH JANUARY, 2019

45

(CCG) gave a presentation on missed appointments, known as Did Not 
Attend (DNA) rates, in Primary Care. Lynne Creavy, Practice Manager, 
South Sefton CCG, was also in attendance.

The presentation focussed on managing the impact of DNAs in general 
practice, based on experience at The Hollies Surgery, Formby, in 
particular. The presentation outlined the following:-

 The position at the Surgery, based on an audit undertaken in April – 
July 2017;

 What is the impact of a “DNA” on general practice?;
 Why DNA?;
 The GP view;
 What options do we have to try to fix this?;
 Lessons learned; and
 Outcome.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:-

 Experiences at other GP surgeries were quite different from The 
Hollies Surgery, with comparatively large numbers of DNAs 
occurring. Concerns were held for those patients who were unable 
to obtain appointments and were attending A&E as a result.
Some GP surgeries were considerably larger than The Hollies and 
covered areas with pockets of deprivation, which could be a 
contributory factor. Some patients, having made an appointment, 
found it difficult to attend the consultation, for a variety of reasons.

 Late arrivals could be due to no fault of the patient and this 
occurrence should be dealt with sensitively.

 It was important to consider what all the Sefton GP surgeries were 
doing about the issue and to learn about and share good and best 
practice from each other. Committee Members wanted to support 
all the Sefton practices in this matter.

Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport 
and Formby CCG, emphasised that GPs did value patients. Patients who 
were consistent DNAs were approached by surgery staff. She considered 
that it was important to identify what the real issues were and what could 
be achieved, in considering this matter.

RESOLVED:

That the presentation and information provided on DNA rates in primary 
care be noted.

42. SEFTON CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUPS - UPDATE 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 8TH JANUARY, 2019

46

REPORT 

The Committee considered the joint update report of the NHS South 
Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group and the NHS Southport and Formby 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) providing an update about the work 
of the CCGs. The report outlined details of the following:-

 Review of urgent care in south Sefton;
 Update on extended GP access services;
 Working together to explore DNA rates in primary care;
 Primary care development strategies;
 Next phase of local health policies review to start;
 Change to prescribing of over-the-counter medicines launched in 

self-care week;
 National prescribing consultation; and
 First governing body meetings of 2019.

Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport 
and Formby CCG, was present from the CCGs to present the update 
report to the Committee and respond to questions put by Members of the 
Committee. She highlighted that the Urgent Care Review in south Sefton 
was not a consultation process, rather it was an engagement process at 
present and that Healthwatch Sefton was assisting in the survey. 
Residents of Southport and Formby who occasionally used urgent care 
services in south Sefton were encouraged to complete the survey too. She 
was mindful that any changes to the service would need to be submitted to 
this Committee for consideration. A review of urgent care in Southport and 
Formby would follow in due course.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:-

 It would be helpful if any proposals arising from the Urgent Care 
Review in south Sefton were reported to the Committee prior to any 
decisions being taken, in order that the Committee could influence 
the outcomes.
Stakeholder engagement events would take place on 20 February 
2019, 6 and 20 March 2019, plus one in April 2019. A Sefton 
Healthwatch Community Champion session would take place on 22 
January 2019. Assurances were given that stakeholder information 
was up-to-date.

 Would responses provided by the North West Ambulance Service 
be provided within the Urgent Care Review in south Sefton?
Conversations would be held with appropriate stakeholders.

 Reference was made to parity of care between mental and physical 
health, as personal health care budgets on the grounds of mental 
health conditions appeared to be extremely limited.

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 8TH JANUARY, 2019

47

The Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport 
and Formby CCG would provide the link to the relevant governing 
body report(s) to the Senior Democratic Services Officer.

 Were children’s skin care products, such as emollients, included 
within the national prescribing consultation?
The British Medical Journal had advised that there were no proven 
benefits to shower products, rather moisturiser was key and this 
could be provided, together with advice on the amount to be 
supplied.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the joint update report submitted by the Clinical Commissioning 
Groups be received; and

(2) the Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport 
and Formby CCG be requested to provide information relating to 
the relevant governing body report(s) that provide data on personal 
health care budgets to the Senior Democratic Services Officer, for 
circulation to Members of the Committee.

43. SEFTON CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUPS - HEALTH 
PROVIDER PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD 

The Committee considered the joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical 
Commissioning Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG), providing data on key performance areas, 
together with responses for the Friends and Family Test for both Southport 
and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust and Aintree University Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust.

Further to Minutes Nod. 28 (2) (c) and 34 (2) of 16 October 2018, 
information on the monitoring of the new 7 day GP extended access 
scheme for both CCGs was included within the data.

Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport 
and Formby CCG, was in attendance to present the data, highlight key 
aspects of performance, and respond to queries from Members of the 
Committee. 

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:-

 Concerns were held regarding the presence of an end of life patient 
on the stroke ward at Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust 
prior to Christmas, as this was considered to be traumatic for 
recovering stroke patients.

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 8TH JANUARY, 2019

48

The decision to include the patient on this ward would only have 
been taken if this was the only option available at the time.

 The results for the responses to the Friends and Family Test for 
Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust remained concerning, 
particularly for the A&E response.
The national system dictated how responses could be acquired and 
Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust tended to utilise text 
messages, with responses being low. Aintree University Hospital 
NHS Foundation Trust was consistently better at the Friends and 
Family Test and the Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton CCG and 
NHS Southport and Formby CCG undertook to investigate the 
reason(s) for this.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the information on Health Provider Performance be noted; and

(2) the Chief Officer for NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport 
and Formby CCG be requested to investigate the reason(s) why 
Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust scores 
consistently better at the Friends and Family Test than Southport 
and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust and report back to the Committee 
on the outcome.

44. CABINET MEMBER REPORTS 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer submitting the most recent Update Reports from the Cabinet 
Member – Adult Social Care, and the Cabinet Member – Health and 
Wellbeing, whose portfolios fell within the remit of this Committee.

The Cabinet Member Update Report - Adult Social Care, outlined 
information on the following:-

 Carers’ Strategy;
 Financial Update:

o Revenue Budget Position;
o Winter funding; and

 Adult Social Care and the Star Awards.

Councillor Cummins, Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care, had submitted 
his apologies for the meeting and any questions on his Update Report 
could be submitted to him via the Senior Democratic Services Officer.

The Cabinet Member Update Report – Health and Wellbeing outlined 
developments on the following aspects of Public Health:-

 Health Checks;

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 8TH JANUARY, 2019

49

 Flu Vaccination;
 Cancer Prevention;
 Obesity;
 Suicide Report;
 Public Health Outcome Framework;
 Public Health Commissioned Services; and
 Public Health Annual Report.

Councillor Moncur, Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing, was in 
attendance at the meeting to present his Update Report and highlight 
particular aspects of it. He reported that the Public Health Team was now 
almost fully staffed.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:-

 The figures on the reduction in deaths under the Suicide Report in 
the Cabinet Member Update Report – Health and Wellbeing were 
queried.
The figures for 2015 and 2016 should be transposed.

 Further to Minute No. 35 of 16 October 2018, reference was made 
to the necessity of having phased deliveries of the flu vaccine in 
2018/19, which had created an apparent shortage of the vaccine in 
the Southport area.
The supply of the vaccine had been one of the main difficulties this 
winter and this issue was not confined to Southport nor to Sefton. 
The issue would need to be reported back to Public Health 
England, in order to avoid similar problems next winter.

 With regard to data on demographics for suicide rates, was there 
any variation in Sefton compared to national high-risk categories?
Sefton was broadly in line with national comparators. Work was 
also underway to roll out a programme to all Cheshire and 
Merseyside local authorities on children and young people suicide 
and self-harm prevention training. A one day mental health first aid 
course was available and information would be sought on this.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the update reports from the Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care, 
and the Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing be noted;

(2) Members of the Committee be invited to submit any questions on 
the Cabinet Member Update Report - Adult Social Care via the 
Senior Democratic Services Officer; and

(3) the Senior Democratic Services Officer be requested to obtain 
information regarding mental health first aid training, for circulation 
to Members of the Committee.

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 8TH JANUARY, 2019

50

45. WORK PROGRAMME KEY DECISION FORWARD PLAN 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer, seeking the views of the Committee on its Work Programme for 
the remainder of 2018/19; requesting the identification of potential topics 
for scrutiny reviews to be undertaken by any Working Group(s) appointed 
by the Committee; identification of any items for pre-scrutiny by the 
Committee from the Key Decision Forward Plan; and consideration of the 
process to be undertaken during 2019 regarding draft Quality Accounts.

A Work Programme for 2018/19 was set out at Appendix A to the report, to 
be considered, along with any additional items to be included and agreed. 
Potential items for the next Committee agenda included an invitation to the 
North West Ambulance Service to attend the meeting and an item on the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.

Further to Minute No. 34 (3) of 16 October 2018, the Committee was 
invited to consider any potential scrutiny review topics to be undertaken 
during 2018/19 and a Criteria Checklist for Selecting Topics for Review 
was attached to the report at Appendix B. The Sefton Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) had recommended that work to explore 
missed primary care appointments (DNAs) be deferred until after 1 April 
2019, as it was hoped that the CCGs would assume delegated 
responsibility for the commissioning of general practitioner services after 
this date.

There were three Decisions within the latest Key Decision Forward Plan, 
attached to the report at Appendix C that fell under this Committee’s remit, 
and the Committee was invited to consider items for pre-scrutiny.

The report also sought views on the process to be undertaken for the 
scrutiny of draft Quality Accounts from NHS Trusts during 2019. The report 
set out the process adopted during 2018 and proposed following the same 
procedure in 2019. It was reported that the Chair and Vice-Chair of the 
Committee had met with Healthwatch Sefton representatives and had 
proposed consideration of the draft Quality Accounts from Mersey Care 
NHS Foundation Trust, insofar as the Trust provided community health 
services in the south of the Borough; Lancashire Care NHS Foundation 
Trust, as the Trust provided community health services in the north of the 
Borough; the Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS 
Trust; and Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust. A provisional date 
to consider the draft Quality Accounts would be confirmed in due course. 
In addition, an annual event was usually hosted by one of the Merseyside 
Clinical Commissioning Groups on draft quality Accounts and details 
would be confirmed, once they were available.

RESOLVED: That

Page 14

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 8TH JANUARY, 2019

51

(1) the Work Programme for 2018/19, as set out in Appendix A to the 
report, be agreed, together with the proposals on items for the next 
meeting, namely an invitation to the North West Ambulance Service 
and an item on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment;

(2) the appointment of a Working Group on missed primary care 
appointments (DNAs) be deferred until after 1 April 2019; 

(3) the contents of the Key Decision Forward Plan for the period 1 
December 2018 – 31 March 2019, be noted;

(4) with regard to the process to be undertaken for the scrutiny of draft 
Quality Accounts in 2019, an informal daytime meeting be 
convened to consider four draft Quality Accounts, a representative 
of the Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) to be requested to 
attend the meeting, together with Healthwatch representatives, the 
draft Quality Accounts from the following NHS Trusts to be 
considered:-

 Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust, insofar as the Trust provides 
community health services in the south of the Borough; 

 Lancashire Care NHS Foundation Trust, as the Trust provides 
community health services in the north of the Borough;

 Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust; 
and 

 Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust.

Page 15

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Our services:
Emergency and urgent care 
Non-emergency patient transport 
NHS 111

                                                                                                                          
          

Headquarters: Ladybridge Hall, 399 Chorley New Road, Bolton, BL1 5DD

Chairman: Peter White

Interim Chief Executive: Michael Forrest FCIPD

North West Ambulance Service NHS Trust

Report for Sefton Overview & Scrutiny Committee - 26 February 2019

1.0 Our Strategy

1.1  Our ambition is to be the best ambulance service in the UK by providing the right care, at the 
right time, in the right place, every time. 

 We will achieve this by taking clinical decisions early in the patient journey to ensure no 
patient is needlessly waiting. 

2.0 Changes to how our performance is measured:

2.1  A new set of pre-triage questions recognise patients in need of the fastest response, earlier in 
the call e.g. cardiac arrest

 The most appropriate vehicle will be sent first time e.g. stroke
 Sending the correct vehicle first time and not multiple vehicles* will help to free up resources 

to respond to other emergencies

3.0 Sefton Performance:

3.1  AUG 18 SEP 18 OCT 18 NOV 18 DEC 18 JAN 19
South Sefton CCG
C1 Best Response Average 00:08:09 00:07:40 00:08:43 00:07:44 00:07:56 00:07:50
C1 90th Percentile 00:13:33 00:12:19 00:13:34 00:12:25 00:13:31 00:12:25
C2 Best Response Average 00:28:56 00:28:02 00:26:32 00:27:04 00:32:30 00:29:15
C2 90th Percentile 01:08:41 01:03:18 01:01:00 01:01:22 01:14:40 01:04:47
C3 90th Percentile 02:51:29 02:49:59 03:12:00 03:19:46 03:13:36 02:59:17
C4 90th Percentile 02:51:49 02:51:29 03:36:51 02:54:42 02:40:24 03:46:34
Southport and Formby CCG
C1 Best Response Average 00:08:58 00:08:44 00:08:33 00:08:24 00:08:15 00:08:49
C1 90th Percentile 00:19:02 00:13:45 00:16:17 00:15:58 00:17:30 00:15:20
C2 Best Response Average 00:22:56 00:24:38 00:25:22 00:23:47 00:26:47 00:26:21
C2 90th Percentile 00:52:38 00:55:41 00:54:21 00:59:15 01:02:14 01:00:13
C3 90th Percentile 02:15:43 02:48:49 03:00:00 02:26:57 02:48:53 02:48:19
C4 90th Percentile 03:44:01 02:42:31 03:17:28 02:16:30 03:34:19 03:04:16

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



- 2 -

4.1 Performance Improvement Plan:

4.2  Increase numbers of double crew ambulances
 Increase see and treat, and hear and treat
 Reduce ratio of responding vehicles
 More clinicians in our control centres
 Early identification of most life threatening calls by use of key words
 More informed dispatch for other calls.
 Work with partners to enhanced turnaround target of 30 mins

5.0 Initiatives/Partnership working:

5.1 Southport Community Specialist Paramedic appointed. Graham Pacey appointed into senior role to engage 
with external partners and providers to develop specialist referral pathways. Ongoing work involves:

 Social prescribing pathways with third sector agencies.
 MFRS referral scheme whereby NWAS clinicians refer vulnerable individuals for home fire safety 

checks.
 Partner working with frequent caller team from SDGH as well as NWAS to put in place anticipatory 

care plans.
 Dementia hub meeting for service users planned for early March, led by NWAS and involving other 

partners.
 Regularly attends Locality GP meetings over service modernisation and their collaborative working 

with NWAS.
 Working with Queenscourt Hospice to assist with rollout of District Nurse verification of expected 

death.
 Working with Lancashire Care and partners to identify opportunities for collaborative working in the 

community setting.
 Working with SDGH to setup a ‘Care Home Forum’ to facilitate training system changes to care home 

settings.

5.2 NWAS regularly experience long delays in accessing GP out of hours services in the South Sefton area. In an 
attempt to identify the best care for patients, clinicians have experienced call back waits in excess of 120 
minutes on scene. This may be due to the lack of a specially commissioned AVS (Acute Visiting Service), 
resulting in NWAS clinicians joining the queue to speak to a Doctor alongside patients and relatives accessing 
the service.

5.3 NWAS are working with the out of hours provider to identify areas where the referral process might be 
improved and streamlined.

5.4 Manchester Triage System is a triage tool which is improved on the current tool, Pathfinder currently in use by 
NWAS clinicians. MTS allows greater flexibility to identify the most appropriate disposition and care pathway 
for patients, hopefully improving the ‘see and treat’ performance and ensuring that more appropriate 
pathways are accessed for patients. MTS is currently being introduced to clinicians across the Sefton footprint.

6.0 Hospital Turnaround:

6.1 University Hospital Aintree are currently working with NWAS to identify changes to the ‘Hospital Handover’ 
process as part of the ‘Super Six’ project across the NWAS footprint.

6.2 This involves developing a framework whereby suitable patients are left in the care of the ED staff, allowing 
NWAS crews to return to operational readiness, reducing the hospital turnaround time and increasing their 
availability to further calls within the local community.Page 18

Agenda Item 4



- 3 -

6.3 This piece of work, undertaken over several trial days during Q3 will culminate in a summit involving Chief 
Executive and Director level delegates from Aintree and other acute Trusts involved in the project. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Scrutiny Briefing Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(Adult Social Care and Health)

Date of Meeting: 26 February 2019

Subject: Update Report of Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer

Organisation: NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport and Formby CCG

Contact Officer: Lyn Cooke
Tel: 0151 317 8456
Email: lyn.cooke@southseftonccg.nhs.uk

Purpose/Summary

To provide Members of the Committee with an update about the work of NHS South 
Sefton CCG and NHS Southport and Formby CCG.

Recommendation(s)

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health) are 
requested to receive this report.

Page 21

Agenda Item 5

mailto:lyn.cooke@southseftonccg.nhs.uk


2

Update for Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care) 
February 2019

If you would like more information about any of the items contained in this update, if you have 
any questions about local health services, or any particular issues you would like to raise, 
please call 0151 317 8456.   

Deal to expand GP services welcomed by local health and care leaders

NHS England (NHSE) has announced a new five year contract for general practice that it says 
will see billions of extra investment for improved access to family doctors, expanded services at 
local practices and longer appointments for patients who need them. The deal has been 
described by NHSE chief executive, Simon Stevens as the first major pillar implementing the 
NHS Long Term Plan, published in January 2019. The new contract has been welcomed by NHS 
leaders in Cheshire & Merseyside, who said it would accelerate work already underway to 
sustain and transform primary care. The extra investment will increase the numbers of clinical 
staff working in general practice and look to increase the numbers of pharmacists, 
physiotherapists, paramedics, physician associates and social prescribing support workers in 
general practice. The contract will also see neighbouring practices working together as primary 
care networks, with multi-disciplinary teams working alongside other community services. The 
NHS in Cheshire and Merseyside is investing £6 million over the next two years to support the 
development of primary care networks (PCNs). In total more than 60 local primary care networks 
have been established with the aim of having primary care networks in place for the entire 
population by June 2019. Other work already underway includes: 

 NHS England (Cheshire & Merseyside) is putting an additional £180,000 investment, 
alongside Health Education England funding, to support practices to employ physician 
associates and embed their roles in general practice. The aim is to have at least an 
additional 30 physician associates working in general practice by April 2019.

 Early in development are plans to implement a rotating paramedic scheme in Sefton and 
Halton, with the overall aim to enable more paramedics to work in primary care.

 Plans to substantially increase the number of clinical pharmacists working in general 
practice. There are 75 clinical pharmacists currently working in general practice across 
Cheshire and Merseyside. NHS South Sefton and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Groups have 100% clinical pharmacist coverage in their area.

More information about the contract is available from the NHS England website 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/gp/gpfv/investment/gp-contract/  

Page 22

Agenda Item 5

https://www.england.nhs.uk/gp/gpfv/investment/gp-contract/


3

Sefton residents urged to take part in Europe’s biggest healthcare survey

More than two million people are being given an opportunity to tell the NHS about their 
experiences of using services at their GP practice. The GP Patient Survey invites a sample of 
people aged 16 and over from over 7,000 practices across England to take part. It is key to 
helping the NHS understand what’s working well and what needs to change. Results of the 2018 
survey showed 90% of patients in Southport and Formby and 83% of patients in South Sefton 
rated their overall experience of their GP practice as ‘Good’ (national average: 84%). Sefton 
residents who have been randomly selected to take part will receive a letter over the next few 
weeks, along with a questionnaire, which can be completed by post or online until the end of 
March. Patients who are not invited to take part in this year’s survey can still provide useful 
feedback by filling in a Friends and Family Test form at their practice any time. It is open to 
everyone, any time – and every practice is involved. More than 1.2 million pieces of feedback are 
given through this form every month, with nine in 10 rating their experience positively.

Designated clinical officer appointed

CCGs in Sefton and Liverpool have appointed a joint designated clinical officer. Emma Powell 
was appointed in December 2018 to support health services to implement the Children and 
Families Act. The scope of her role is very broad and key responsibilities are as follows:

 Oversight – across all health professionals delivering healthcare to individual disabled 
children, young people and those with special educational needs

 Coordination – in relation to the Local Offer, process for mediation arrangements 
regarding the health elements of young peoples special educational health and Social 
care (EHC) plan and EHC assessments with other key assessments such as Children & 
Young People’s Continuing Care assessments and Looked After Children Health 
assessments

 Strategic – contribution to the development of a joint commissioning strategy and 
participation and engagement strategy

Each CCG has a special educational needs and disability (SEND) statement of intent, which sets 
out the role and function that health commissioners have in relation to SEND. You can find these 
published on the CCGs websites.

Annual 360 degree stakeholder survey 

Over the past few weeks, some of the CCGs most important partners have been invited to give 
their views about working with the two local healthcare commissioners in the annual 360 degree 
stakeholder survey. Members of Sefton Council, including councillors from the Health and 
Wellbeing Board and Overview and Scrutiny Committee for Adult Social Care, as well as senior 
officers are amongst those encouraged to take part. The survey is being carried out by Ipsos 
MORI on behalf of NHS England. The results contribute to the CCGs’ annual appraisal against 
performance standards set out in the Integrated Assessment Framework (IAF). This year’s 
survey focuses on the core functions of CCGs, working in partnership with each other and other 
partner organisations within their wider transformation programmes. Feedback and views 
received from stakeholders about their working relationships with CCGs is extremely important in 
helping them develop in their role. The results of the survey will form part of each CCG’s overall 
IAF assessment result, published later this year.  

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



4

Assessment results for clinical priority areas  

At the end of January 2019, NHS England published national assessments for four clinical 
priority areas, which will form part of the CCGs forthcoming IAF scores. There are four headline 
ratings - ‘outstanding’, ‘good’, ‘requires improvement’ and ‘inadequate’ - that the CCGs could be 
awarded:

NHS Southport and Formby CCG NHS South Sefton CCG

Mental Health – Good Mental Health – Requires improvement

Dementia – Outstanding Dementia – Requires improvement

Learning Disabilities – Requires improvement Learning Disabilities – Requires improvement

Diabetes – Requires improvement Diabetes – Outstanding

The detailed assessments and rationale are currently being reviewed.  The CCG lead for each 
area is now in the process of developing action plans to ensure that we are able to improve in 
those areas that require further attention.  

Patient and community engagement assessment 

Sefton’s two CCGs are preparing to submit evidence to NHS England in the 2018-2019 
assessment process against the IAF Patient and Community Engagement Indicators. This is the 
second year since the introduction of the indicators, which link closely to statutory guidance for 
CCGs relating to patient and public participation in commissioning health and care. The 
assessment process looks at governance arrangements, annual reporting, day-to-day practice, 
feedback and evaluation and equalities and health inequalities. Like the majority of their peers, 
Sefton’s CCGs were rated ‘good’ against the indicators in the 2017-2018 exercise. Ratings for 
the 2018-2019 process are expected to be published in July 2019. 

Next stages of urgent care review in south Sefton 

Around 400 individuals and organisations gave their views and experiences of using local urgent 
care services as part of a wider review being carried out by NHS South Sefton CCG.  Urgent 
care services are there for people who need immediate or same day physical or mental health 
advice or treatment. They include services at pharmacies, GP practices, GP out of hours 
services, the NHS 111 phone line and website, walk-in centres, accident and emergency (A&E) 
departments and 999. People were invited to take part by completing an online survey between 
10 December 2018 and 31 January 2019. Results from the exercise will now be used to help 
develop proposals for how urgent care could look in the future. The review will also consider how 
new national NHS guidelines for urgent care services and the introduction of ‘Urgent Treatment 
Centres’ might be put into place in south Sefton. NHS South Sefton CCG is carrying out its 
review with partners across north Merseyside as patients often use urgent care services across 
this wider area. A series of co-design events will be taking place in March and April that will start 
to move this work forward. The sessions will bring commissioners together with providers and 
community, patient and council representatives. The full results of the public engagement 
exercise will be published on the CCG’s website in the spring.        

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



5

Reductions running costs

In November 2018, CCGs were challenged with reducing management and administration costs 
to meet a reduction of 20% in Running Cost Allowances (RCA) in the year ending 31 March 
2021.  There are number of principles underpinning the mandate from NHS England including 
the requirement to improve efficiency, reduce unnecessary administrative burden, reduce 
duplication and remove some bureaucratic and expensive contracting processes.  The CCGs are 
now considering ways in which that these requirements can be met and is in liaison with other 
local commissioners and Midlands and Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit to share 
thoughts on the ways in which this can be achieved.

National EU exit guidance 

At the end of 2018, the Department of Health issued guidance to commissioners, providers and 
local authorities on the steps that should now been taken to ensure the risks associated with a 
“no deal” exit are understood and as far as practicable, mitigated. Joint CCG chief officer, Fiona 
Taylor has been identified as the senior responsible officer (SRO) within the two organisations to 
lead and oversee this work. Key actions for the CCGs relate to ensuring there is a risk 
assessment of the likely impact should there be a ‘no deal’ EU exit at the end of March 2019. In 
addition, the CCGs have written to all providers asking for confirmation and assurance that they 
are carrying out the required actions set out in the guidance. The CCGs continue to engage in 
business continuity planning both a local and system level. You can see the full guidance from 
the following link: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/brexit-operational-readiness-
guidance-for-the-health-and-social-care-system-in-england 

Update on local health policies review 

The third phase of the CCGs’ review of local health policies, which began in summer 2017, is 
preparing to launch. The CCGs have been working with a number of other CCGs across 
Cheshire and Merseyside to review and update local health policies for a number of clinical 
procedures based on certain criteria. The review largely focuses on changes in clinical evidence 
about the effectiveness of treatments to help ensure the best use of limited NHS funds. There 
are a number of treatments being reviewed in this phase of the programme including continuous 
glucose monitoring, trans anal irrigation and secondary care joint injections. A period of 
engagement will shortly be launched to further inform the review, when Sefton residents will be 
invited to give their views to help shape local NHS services for the future. Should CCGs agree 
proposed changes to policies, patients who might not be eligible for treatment will still be able to 
apply through an individual funding request (IFR) where appropriate. Details of how people can 
get involved will be promoted as soon as they are available. A review of the policy relating to 
assisted conception will now take place later in the year.

Page 25

Agenda Item 5

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/brexit-operational-readiness-guidance-for-the-health-and-social-care-system-in-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/brexit-operational-readiness-guidance-for-the-health-and-social-care-system-in-england


6

Help Us Help You by choosing pharmacy first

Sefton residents are being reminded this month that they can get expert advice about minor 
health concerns from their local pharmacy, saving them a trip to their doctor’s surgery. That’s the 
message from the CCGs as part of the latest phase of the national ‘Help Us, Help You’ 
campaign, focusing on the range of services and support available from pharmacies. Pharmacy 
teams offer a fast and convenient clinical service for minor health concerns with no appointment 
needed and use of a private consultation room should it be required. According to NHS England 
27 per cent of GP appointments in England could potentially be treated elsewhere. People can 
simply walk into your pharmacy, without an appointment and they will be able to access expert 
advice. More information about the campaign is available from the CCGs’ websites.

Next governing body meetings 

Sefton residents are invited to attend the CCGs’ April governing body meetings, which are held in 
public starting from 1pm on the dates and at the venues below:

 NHS Southport and Formby CCG – Wednesday 3 April 2019, Family Life Centre, Ash St, 
Southport, Merseyside, PR8 6JH 

 NHS South Sefton CCG - Thursday 4 April 2019, 3rd floor boardroom, Merton House, 
Stanley Rd, Bootle, L20 3DL

Anyone wishing to attend is asked to contact 0151 317 8456 to book their place.

Visit the CCGs’ websites for more about their work www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk or 
www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk, follow them on Twitter @NHSSSCCG or 
@NHSSFCCG or see a range of short films on You Tube for NHSSSCCG or NHS SFCCG 

Page 26

Agenda Item 5

http://www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk/
https://twitter.com/NHSSSCCG
https://twitter.com/nhssfccg
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCVF6RjsbZXnXFmoHqMzSJnQ
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC3zskxhEM5dWeJtypBBmTOA


Main Provider Performance –

November 2018

The following slides present performance against key strategic, NHS constitution, quality 

and safety indicators for the main providers the two CCGs commission from.   

Time periods vary for the indicators presented, and are indicated in the tables. 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 6



NHS Southport and Formby CCG

Key Performance Area
Time 

Period
Performance Target Trend

A&E 4hour Waits, All Types (Southport & 

Ormskirk, cumultive YTD) 
Nov-18 89.0% 88.5% (STP trajectory)

Cancer 2 Week Waits (Southport & Ormskirk, 

cumulative YTD)
Nov-18 94.7% 93%

Cancer 62 Day - Screening (Southport & Ormskirk 

Cumulative YTD)
Nov-18 91.5% 90%

Cancer 31 Day (Southport & Ormskirk, 

cumulative YTD)
Nov-18 98.1% 96%

RTT -18 Weeks Incomplete (Southport & 

Ormskirk, in month snaphot position)
Nov-18 96.2% 92%

C.Difficile (Southport & Ormskirk, cumulative 

YTD)
Nov-18 8

23 (year to date)               

35 (year end)

MRSA (Southport & Ormskirk, cumulative YTD) Nov-18 0 0

Stroke (80% of Pts spending 90% of time on 

Stroke Unit, Southport & Ormskirk, monthly 

snapshot position)

Nov-18 72.7% 80%

%  TIA assessed and treated within 24 hours 

(Southport & Ormskirk, monthly snapshot 

position)

Nov-18 0.0% 60%

Ambulance Category 1 Mean 7 minute response 

time (CCG LEVEL)
Nov-18

8 minutes                  24 

seconds
<=7 Minutes

Mental Health: Care Programme Approach 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 2         

Sep 18
100.0% 95%

Mental Health: IAPT 16.8% Access (CCG LEVEL) Nov-18 1.07%
1.4% per month Qtr 1-3                   

1.58% per month Qtr 4

Mental Health: IAPT 50% Recovery (CCG LEVEL) Nov-18 62.1% 50%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <6 weeks (Quarterly)
Qtr 2         

Sep 18
98.3% 75%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <18 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 2         

Sep 18
100.0% 90%

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 6



Southport & Ormskirk

Friends & Family Test

Measure
Time 

Period

Southport & 

Ormskirk
England Average Trend

Inpatient – response Nov-18 8.2% 24.9%

Inpatient Recommended Nov-18 98.0% 96.0%

Inpatient Not Recommended Nov-18 1.0% 2.0%

A&E – response Nov-18 1.2% 12.2%

A&E Recommended Nov-18 87.0% 87.0%

A&E Not Recommended Nov-18 11.0% 8.0%

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 6



NHS Southport and Formby CCG

7 Day GP Extended Access

Appointments

Available
Booked DNA

Breakdown

of

Appointments

GP

Advanced

Nurse 

Practitioner

Practice

Nurse

Health

Care 

Assistant

Physio*

Oct-18
702

404 34 235 135 23 11 N/A

58% 4.8% 58.2% 33.4% 5.7% 2.7% -

Nov-18
861 528 48 254 164 54 48 8

61.3% 5.6% 48.1% 31.1% 10.2% 9.1% 1.5%

*Physiotherapy started 26th November

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 6



NHS South Sefton CCG

Key Performance Area
Time 

Period
Performance Target Trend

A&E 4hour Waits, All Types (Aintree) Nov-18 86.3% 91.7% (STP trajectory)

Cancer 2 Week Waits (Aintree) Nov-18 89.4% 93%

Cancer 62 Day - Screening (Aintree) Nov-18 75.0% 90%

Cancer 31 Day (Aintree) Nov-18 97.4% 96%

RTT -18 Weeks Incomplete (Aintree) Nov-18 90.0% 92%

C.Difficile (Aintree) Nov-18 24
30 (year to date)                       

45 (year end)

MRSA (Aintree) Nov-18 1 0

Stroke (80% of Pts spending 90% of time on 

Stroke Unit) (Aintree)
Nov-18 85.0% 80%

%  TIA assessed and treated within 24 hours 

(Aintree)
Nov-18 100% 60%

Ambulance Category 1 Mean 7 minute response 

time (CCG LEVEL)
Nov-18

7 minutes                                                         

44 seconds
<=7 Minutes

Mental Health: Care Programme Approach 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 2         

Sep 18
100.0% 95%

Mental Health: IAPT 16.8% Access (CCG LEVEL) Nov-18 1.23%
1.4% per month Qtr 1-3                   

1.58% per month Qtr 4

Mental Health: IAPT 50% Recovery (CCG LEVEL) Nov-18 55.2% 50%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <6 weeks (Quarterly)
Qtr 2         

Sep 18
99.5% 75%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <18 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 2         

Sep 18
100.0% 90%

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 6



Aintree University

Friends & Family Test

Measure
Time 

Period
Aintree England Average Trend

Inpatient – response Nov-18 20.3% 24.9%

Inpatient Recommended Nov-18 94.0% 96.0%

Inpatient Not Recommended Nov-18 2.0% 2.0%

A&E – response Nov-18 18.9% 12.2%

A&E Recommended Nov-18 86.0% 87.0%

A&E Not Recommended Nov-18 10.0% 8.0%

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 6



NHS South Sefton CCG

7 Day GP Extended Access

Appointments Breakdown

Available of

670 107 Appointments

55.40% 8.90%

1006 134 291 457 251 0

71.10% 9.60% 28.93% 45.43% 24.95% 0.00%

955 123 334 453 122 0

66.23% 8.53% 34.97% 47.43% 12.77% 0.00%

Practice 

Nurse
Physio

Oct-18 1209 Data Unavailable

Nov-18 1403

Booked DNA GP

Advanced 

Nurse 

Practitioner

Dec-18 1442

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 6



Approaches to collecting FFT data by trust

Provider Areas Response Response rate Mode of collection Percentage 

Recommended

Southport and 

Ormskirk 

Hospital NHS 

Trust

AED 61 1.2% Paper or postcard at 

point of discharge.

87%

Inpatient 342 8.2% 98%

Outpatient 49 Not recorded 94%

Aintree 

University 

Hospital NHS 

Foundation 

Trust

AED 670 18.9% SMS, Text, 

smartphone App or 

telephone survey 

once patient is home

86%

Inpatient 1,372 20.3% 94%

Outpatient 4,550 Not recorded 95%

• SMS/Text/Smartphone App and ‘telephone survey once patient is home’ methods, used 

by AUH, yield higher response rates than ‘paper/postcard at point of discharge’ method 

used by S&O  

• FFT data indicates both providers were comparable for the ‘percentage recommended’ 

score (above 86% for each of the areas reviewed)

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 6



1

Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

(Adult Social Care 
and Health)

Date of Meeting: 26 February 2019

Subject: Cabinet Member Reports – January 2019

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer

Wards Affected: All

Cabinet Portfolio: Adult Social Care
Health and Wellbeing

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To submit the Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care and the Cabinet Member - 
Health and Wellbeing reports relating to the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

Recommendation:

That the Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care and the Cabinet Member - Health 
and Wellbeing reports relating to the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee be noted.

Reasons for the Recommendation:

In order to keep Overview and Scrutiny Members informed, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member Reports to be 
submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

No alternative options have been considered because the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member Reports to be 
submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

Any financial implications associated with the Cabinet Member reports which are 
referred to in this update are contained within the respective reports.

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



2

(A) Revenue Costs – see above

(B) Capital Costs – see above

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

Legal Implications:

Equality Implications:
There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: None directly applicable to this report. The Cabinet 
Member updates provides information on activity within Councillor Cummins’ and 
Councillor Moncur’s portfolios during the previous three-month period. Any 
reports relevant to their portfolios considered by the Cabinet, Cabinet Member or 
Committees during this period would contain information as to how such reports 
contributed to the Council’s Core Purpose.

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: As above

Commission, broker and provide core services: As above

Place – leadership and influencer: As above

Drivers of change and reform: As above

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: As above

Greater income for social investment: As above

Cleaner Greener: As above

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Cabinet Member Update Reports are not subject to FD/LD consultation.  Any 
specific financial and legal implications associated with any subsequent reports 
arising from the attached Cabinet Member update reports will be included in those 
reports as appropriate

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



3

(B) External Consultations 

Not applicable 

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Debbie Campbell
Telephone Number: 0151 934 2254
Email Address: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk 

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report:-

Appendix A - Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care - update report
Appendix B - Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing – update report

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 In order to keep Overview and Scrutiny Members informed, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member 
Reports to be submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

1.2 Attached to this report, for information, are the most recent Cabinet Member 
reports for the Adult Social Care and Health and Wellbeing portfolios.

Page 37

Agenda Item 7

mailto:debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

1 | P a g e

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE REPORT

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health) –
26 February 2019

Councillor Portfolio Period of Report

Paul Cummins Adult Social Care January 2019

Financial Update 

Revenue Budget Position

The Adult Social Care revenue budget remains under significant pressure in this financial year. At 
the end of December, the overall net budget position predicts a deficit of £0.5m based on current 
commitments. This is an improvement of £0.5m on the previous month forecast deficit. The 
Community Care budget has a forecast net deficit of £1.6m that is being offset by vacancy savings 
from natural staff turnover, a forecast surplus on the specialist transport budget and an anticipation 
that some community equipment spend can be capitalised. 

The Head of Adult Social Care continues to seek mitigations to offset budget pressures including 
undertaking work to ensure all income collectable from the NHS for joint funding and Funded 
Nursing Care arrangements is pursued and ensuring joint working around Continuing Health Care 
and Children’s Transitions. 

A Complex Case Board meeting continues to meet fortnightly, to ensure quality and value for 
money in service provision. The Head of Adult Social Care is reviewing the scheme of delegation  
within her service to ensure the tightest of control over spend authorisation. The Personalisation 
programme is also on-going to deliver required budget savings as part of both Adult Social Care 
Transformation and Public Sector Reform. The budget position will continue to be monitored closely 
throughout the year.

Winter Funding

A Sefton Winter Plan had been formulated with regard to use of the new winter monies announced. 
Up to January 2019 £0.71m has been spent in accordance with the plan funding additional social 
work capacity in acute hospitals, including cover for the Christmas period, additional care 
packages, and short-term residential beds and utilising ‘step down’ residential beds in partnership 
with New Directions. 

Both hospitals remain under pressure in relation to facilitating timely discharges, and the winter 
monies continues to support this work, alongside the partnership working in place with New 
Directions. Services operating from James Dixon Court and Chase Heys continue to be a great 
success, and the formal opening ceremony for the service at James Dixon Court, with the aid of 
my ribbon cutting skills, has now taken place, with a partnership agreement being signed as part 
of the official ceremony.

Performance

At present, indicators relating the Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) are generally 
showing similar levels to Quarter1. Highlights include:

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX A

2 | P a g e

 The proportion of carers using Self-directed Support (SDS) has improved slightly since 
Quarter 1, however, this is still lower than previous quarters.  
The number of carers receiving a carers specific service, continues to see a decrease this 
quarter and continues to be the lowest it has been since 2016/17. Note that part of this 
change is a result of additional 'non-SDS' services being provided directly through the 
Carers Centre.

 Adults with Learning Disabilities in paid employment is consistent with Quarter 1 and has 
seen no change this quarter. 

 The proportion of adults with Learning Disabilities in settled accommodation has seen a 
very slight decrease this quarter, however it is still higher than it has been in the previous 
three years. This also continues to be higher than the North West (NW) and higher than the 
2018/19 target. 

 Permanent admissions of 65+ to care homes has increased slightly since the previous 
quarter yet is still better than the previous three years and is in line with the 2018/19 target. 
For those aged 18-64, there has been a slight improvement, with this now being lower than 
the 2018/19 target and the lowest it has been since 2016/17.

 The proportion of adults aged 65+ still at home 91 days after hospital discharge has 
increased since last quarter and is the highest it has been over the past three years. This 
increase is significantly higher than the NW and higher than the 2018/19 target.

 Sequels to Short Term Services (STS) for New Clients being either 'no ongoing support' or 
'lower level support' has seen a slight decrease since Quarter 1, yet this is still significantly 
higher than the NW. 

 Reablement for clients aged 65+ has continued to drop further since year end. This is 
primarily a result of less reablement being delivered by New Directions. There is a plan to 
work with New Directions to support reablement availability.

 The proportion of Safeguarding referrals completed within 50 days has seen an increase 
since the previous quarter and is now above target for 2018/19, whilst also being the highest 
it has been for the previous three years. 

Workforce Development 

The Adult Social Care social work teams and Localities workforce will commence a training and 
development programme in April 2019. This training will be delivered by the Social Care Institute 
of Excellence (SCIE) and will ensure that new ways of working are embedded across the services. 
Strengths based assessment and Care Act awareness training will be available to both service 
areas with social care professional teams undergoing further rigorous training around determining 
eligibility, recording, strengths based and person centred assessment and planning. 

This training will take the form of both classroom and surgeries and be backed up with 
comprehensive training materials, processes and guidance and will complement the launch of new 
contract referrals and assessment tools across the service. 

The workforce will also be able to access RiPFA (Research in Practice For Adults) as an online 
source to support continuous professional development (CPD).  ASC will also work with RiPFA to 
provide comprehensive Supervision training to support staff.  This programme of activity will run 
over the year, with champions identified to provide a sustainable approach for the service.

This training is following best practice.  Strength based social work practice is a collaborative 
process between the person being supported by services and those supporting them, allowing 
them to work together and draw on persons strengths and community support.

Page 40

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX A

3 | P a g e

Carers Survey Results - Initial Overview

Results are now in, in relation to the biennial statutory survey of carers. Some 1,500 questionnaires 
were sent out in October and approximately 600 people responded.

A more detailed report is being prepared in tandem with an associated action plan as part of the 
refresh of the Carers Strategy that is underway. The following provides very short summary of early 
findings.

In terms of the national Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) metrics, Sefton’s 
position has improved from the previous survey. 

We now sit at, or around, average in terms of overall satisfaction and involvement in decision 
making. In terms of quality of life, social isolation, and access to information whilst we remain below 
comparator averages, we have improved our position against national comparators from the last 
survey. Please see below. 

There remain core areas for improvement and these areas will be addressed in the revised carers 
strategy which will likely focus around those carers who report:

 They feel they are neglecting themselves.
 They have little contact with people and feel socially isolated.
 They have no control over their daily life.
 They find information and advice difficult to find.
 They have no encouragement or support.

The Carers service and Adult Social Care are working together to improve the outcomes for carers 
and a joint plan will be available later in the year which will inform future commissioning around 
carers needs.

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX A

4 | P a g e

Commissioning 

A number of key commissioning projects are underway :

 Adult Social Care Domiciliary Care Services - implementation of the new contracts 
continues. Work has begun on embedding the new model which enables the provider to 
use a ‘Trusted Assessor’ within the service to adjust care packages according to needs. 
This should help providers to manage services and respond more quickly to changes and 
support best use of staff. Recruitment is still a challenge, however seems to be improving. 
The CST are also working with lead providers to better understand recruitment issues and 
are engaging with Sefton at Work to ensure as much support is available to help providers.

 Supported Living - The Supported Living Project (review of service users and 
review/revision of provision) has been completed however we will be reviewing the future 
housing and support options for vulnerable people and a strategic commissioning plan for 
these services which includes the use of assistive technology. The Council will be working 
across the Liverpool City Region to develop a flexible framework approach which can be 
used by Sefton to commissioning complex care services including supported living.

 Extra Care Housing - The re-commissioning of the two schemes in Sefton (Parkhaven 
Court and James Horrigan Court), including developing a new specification and 
performance framework is currently underway. 

 Fee Strategy - The Head of Social Care and Senior Commissioning Support Manager have 
started to review the process of agreeing fee strategy for social care providers for 2019/20. 
This work is in its early stages and further updates will be provided. 

Page 42

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B

Cabinet Member Update

Councillor Portfolio Period of Report

Ian Moncur Health & Wellbeing Dec 18 – Jan 19

Stop Smoking Service Contract Extension
Public Health are seeking to extend Sefton Stop Smoking Service for a further 12 
months, by exercising a plus one year option within the current contract.
 
Sefton Council have contracted Solutions 4 Health to deliver a specialist stop smoking 
service for Sefton. An annual budget of £665K for a contract period of 2 years with 3 
plus one year options was implemented in April 2017.
 
Solutions 4 Health is commissioned to provide an evidence-based specialised support 
service for people wanting to give up smoking, or reduce harm with a view to quitting 
in the longer term.  The service is driven to achieve a reduction in smoking prevalence 
in adults who require the most support, including people with poor mental health, 
pregnant women and people living in areas of greatest deprivation and to contribute 
to Sefton’s Living Well Sefton Service (LWS). 

A one year extension to the current contract is required to build on early successes 
and consolidate progress to date. This will be delivered within the existing annual 
budget. Decision to go to Cabinet on 7th February 2019.

Medically Managed Residential Detoxification
As Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing I was briefed on contract extension 
options for Medically Managed Residential Detoxification for individuals affected by 
substance use.

Detoxification services are an integral part of any substance use treatment system and 
an essential element in enabling people with substance use problems to realise a drug 
and alcohol-free life. In March 2016, Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust were 
awarded a contract to provide Medically Managed Residential Detoxification services 
with effect from 1st July 2016. The contract was awarded for three years with an option 
to extend for up to a further two years.

Medically Managed Residential Detoxification Services are highly specialised services 
and few exist outside of NHS Trusts. After Mersey Care’s Liverpool-based Hope 
Centre, the nearest provision for medically managed detoxification is in Manchester 
and does not meet the specified criteria of delivering a service within fifteen miles of 
Sefton boarders.

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B

Having been briefed on possible future commissioning options, taking account of 
continuity, service stability and service performance and has agreed the most sensible 
approach is to seek authority for exercising options to continue the contract with 
Mersey Care NHS Foundations Trust for a further two years. As the total contract value 
for two years exceeds the threshold for Cabinet Member approval a decision has been 
taken to seek full Cabinet approval at the Cabinet Meeting in March 2019. 

Smoking at time of delivery (smoking in pregnancy)
An update on smoking in pregnancy underlined the importance of this issue as a main 
preventable cause of stillbirth and pregnancy complications, including premature birth, 
miscarriage, low birth-weight and Sudden Infant Death Syndrome. Latest quarterly 
data collected by the NHS shows that 14.8% of women who are resident in South 
Sefton CCG area were identified as smoking cigarettes at the end of their pregnancy. 
This rate is almost double that for Southport and Formby (8.4%) and ranks fourth 
highest amongst all CCGs in the North West. Work to reduce smoking in pregnancy 
benefits from a solid evidence base and priority status in several national policies. 
Actions tend to focus on the role of maternity and specialist stop smoking services. 
However, this continues to be a challenging area because of the strong associations 
with deprivation, disadvantage and vulnerability.

Sefton Council Public Health team are working with Cheshire and Merseyside Local 
Maternity System to help develop an evidence-based smoking in pregnancy action 
plan and has commissioned a smoking in pregnancy Midwife for the Ormskirk 
Maternity unit. The overlapping geographies between where women live, receive 
maternity care, and deliver their babies, and the commissioning and provider footprints 
for maternity and stop smoking services make this a complex area of work and Sefton 
Council’s Public Health lead for smoking is committed to working collaboratively with 
all relevant partners.
 
Health Inequalities Report
A proposal outlining an initial scope for a new report on Health Inequalities in Sefton 
was presented for comment and feedback. This need was identified in prior 
discussions at Cabinet Member Briefing, centring on the Government’s new Vision for 
Prevention and the increased focus on place-based and assets driven approaches to 
our work in Framework for Change. The recently updated Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) provides an excellent basis for this work. 

The draft scope identified the following main elements:
• definition of health inequality 
• major influences on differences on healthy life expectancy in Sefton 
• health problems that show the greatest inequality for Sefton compared to 

England and within the borough

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B

• inequalities in health behaviours e.g. smoking; and differences in social factors 
that make unhealthy ‘lifestyles’ more likely 

Information can be prevented in a variety of forms including maps and can also include 
relevant insights from existing engagement with services and residents to add depth 
and context. The report will clear identify further questions, implications and potential 
actions.

Value from this report is identified from bringing together valuable information on 
variation in health need and wider determinants of health which will be of direct 
relevance to Council Officers and Members and our work to deliver our 2030 Vision. 
As a chapter of the JSNA, other partners in Health, Voluntary, Public and Private 
Sector can also use this information to guide and shape their work with local 
communities. Next steps were agreed around drawing up a more detailed document 
outline and timeline.

Well Sefton
The third and final year of funding, provided by Public Health England, for the Well 
Sefton programme has been secured.  Using the philosophy underpinning Well Sefton, 
decisions on the allocation of funding were taken collaboratively, with partners coming 
to collective agreement on the projects and funding amounts – which have 
subsequently been approved by the Well North Executive Group and myself as 
Cabinet Member.  £200k will be split between 3 x community and voluntary sector 
partners (Safe Regeneration, Regenerus and YKids) to continue and further develop 
their activities to improve Bootle.  Plans to make all activity sustainable have been 
included as part of the approved overarching plan, this will help to ensure activity 
continues beyond 2020.  Each partner will sign a memorandum of understanding to 
ensure the expected outputs and outcomes are produced.  All activity supports the 5 
main work areas of Well Sefton, which are Branding Bootle, Community Growing, 
Creating Community, Social Prescribing and Business Growth.  

NHS Health Checks
Around 180 completed Health Checks have now been delivered as part of the pilot, 
and 18 mini-health checks have been offered to people who were not eligible for an 
NHS Health Check. Our website has information on NHS Health Checks and 
individuals can register, by telephone or online http://www.activelifestyles-
sefton.co.uk/what-is-the-nhs-health-check/ 

Final tasks around information governance, IT systems and referral pathways are 
being completed and it is anticipated that that Service will go live in early 2019 with full 
schedule of events starting in in spring 2019.

Blood pressure checks to be delivered in workplaces across Cheshire & 
Merseyside

Page 45

Agenda Item 7

http://www.activelifestyles-sefton.co.uk/what-is-the-nhs-health-check/
http://www.activelifestyles-sefton.co.uk/what-is-the-nhs-health-check/


APPENDIX B

Champs Public Health Collaborative has recently been awarded further funding from 
the British Heart Foundation (BHF) after its latest successful partnership bid.

The new programme will enable further detection of high blood pressure at scale and 
pace by embedding blood pressure (BP) checks within wellbeing at work programmes. 
All nine Cheshire and Merseyside (C&M) areas are taking part in this innovative 
programme in addition to Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service. Local areas are taking 
a number of approaches to embed BP checks, advice and signposting in wellbeing at 
work programmes. The programme helps local authority employees and enables 
outreach into local businesses and organisations.

Money Advice in Central Southport 
An update was provided on the Central Southport Money Advice research project, 
which is looking at the issue of problem debt by applying a systems resilience model 
of working developed at a neighbourhood level. The theory suggests that bringing 
together local people, service users and local debt management service providers will 
create opportunities to improve services and foster collaboration. The aims are to
- change the local power dynamics to give residents greater control over 

decisions and actions impacting on their lives, and
- support ‘the system’ to work together to design, implement and evaluate local 

initiatives 

Stakeholders include Council Public Health, academic input, Resident Advisers and 
engagement facilitator from Sefton CVS, alongside money advice services with a 
presence in Central Southport.

This project has taken some time out to revisit core aims, relationships and activities. 
Upcoming work, which will conclude at the end of 2019 includes; development of a 
newsletter, a learning event and development of a picture-based resource to 
constructively share residents’ views on improving experience of seeking and using 
money advice services. This has been inspired by work in Cumbria, which is also part 
of this research programme https://issuu.com/lengrant/docs/moss_bay_bookletissue

Collaborators in this project wish to share learning and make their work sustainable. 
Linking up with the wider programme of Welfare Reform work in the Council has been 
identified as a key means to do so.

Public Health Annual Report 
Updates on the Public Health Annual Report are provided on a regular basis at Cabinet 
Member Briefing. Information was presented detailing intention to produce Public 
Health Annual Report on Air Quality as a simple animation, making use of existing 
skills within the Council’s Communications team and taking inspiration from a similar 
product developed to share information about the Council’s 2017-18 budget.  Key 
messages are directly informed by national evidence, ongoing local insight and 

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B

engagement and review of public-facing online information elsewhere. A text 
supplement (publishable online and downloadable on request) was proposed to host 
more detailed information and links to case studies and resources. Ongoing work 
identified feedback sessions with community stakeholders, continuing efforts to 
involve health colleagues, and initial story-boarding and scripting. Relevant contextual 
changes were highlighted including conclusion of the judicial review process against 
Highways England and completion of a local Clean Air Zone Feasibility study.

Prevention is Better than Cure – Government Vision on Prevention
A briefing was presented outlining an initial draft response from Sefton Council 
following the publication of Prevention is Better than Cure: our vision to help you live 
well for longer. This is the Government’s Vision on Prevention, and is a preliminary 
policy paper published ahead of the anticipated Green Papers on Prevention and 
Social Care and the new NHS Long Term Plan. A draft response identified risks and 
opportunities for progress on reducing health inequalities from the proposals set out 
in the Vision. Notable areas included, lack of appreciation for social factors that shape 
‘lifestyle choice’, over-emphasis of social media as a means to influence healthy 
behaviours, and the need for stronger measurable targets on reducing health 
inequality. The response set out recommendations based on high impact evidence 
from the Due North Report on Health Inequality in the North of England, and set clear 
expectations about the level of funding needed by Local Authorities to effectively 
deliver on this vision. Helpful feedback was received that the arguments presented 
could be strengthened further by including case studies featuring services and 
prevention initiatives that demonstrate a stronger engagement with social 
determinants of health and outcomes that drive a focus on reducing social inequalities 
in health.

Swim Pilot Update
In 2016, Sport and Recreation were successful in securing a £531,000 award from 
Sport England for the delivery of the Swim Pilot project, the vision for which was to 
sustainably increase swimming participation by ensuring it was financially viable and 
socially relevant.  Following a period of insight work, a programme of improvements 
was drawn up, which included a combination of capital improvements, the introduction 
of key initiatives and several service developments. 
 
Based on community feedback, refurbishments to changing rooms at Bootle Leisure 
Centre and Dunes Splash World have been completed, new programmes (Swim Fit, 
Swim and Splash, Calm Waters and Wave Rave) have been introduced, time tabling 
has been adjusted to improve accessibility, music and lighting systems have been 
installed, the swim technology ‘swim tag’ has been introduced and swimming has been 
rebranded to make it more appealing to non-users.
 
During the pilot, there were significant improvements in all areas of satisfaction as well 
as participation.  83% of residents are satisfied with Sefton’s swimming facilities 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B

compared to 66% nationally, there was 108% increase in general swimming, with 
6,000 additional visits in April to Oct 2018 compared to 2017.  There has been a 37% 
increased take up of swim memberships and a £59,000 increase in income amongst 
many other positive outcomes.  
 
The pilot led to an invigoration of swimming and gave it a new, refreshed identity.   
Following its conclusion, a plan has been introduced to ensure sustainability.  To mark 
its legacy the team plan to arrange a celebration event 1 year on.
 
Leisure Update
The summer was an incredibly busy period for the section, which saw increases both 
in participation in all services general Leisure Centre usage, the latter leading to an 
increase in income.  Dunes Splash World achieved an income of £280,000 in August 
alone and Bootle Leisure Centre demonstrated an increase of £28,000 between April 
– October solely on swimming, a 9.5% increase on the same period last year.
 
Meadows Leisure Centre and Library was a very busy facility, with 4,800 active 
members visiting the Fitness Suite and accessing the 120 classes per week.
 
Netherton Activity Centre saw improvements being made to Jakes Sensory World, 
making it more accessible to service users with disabilities and more attractive for 
parent and baby sessions.  In conjunction with L30 Millions the Centre also showcased 
a fantastic firework display with 7-8,000 spectators.
 
Litherland Sports Park played host to a number of events including the Couch to 5k 
Programme, Active Workforce Duathlon and British Cycling sessions.  Working in in 
partnership with Rowan Park there are 10-15 students accessing the Fitness Suite 
weekly alongside staff and reporting a really positive experience.  A 20-foot container 
is now on site to provide hospitality facilities to the host football club Remyca, with 
shared usage for classroom activities, training and meetings.  
 
Due to the great weather Crosby Lakeside was bustling this summer.  Once summer 
concluded the Centre began to change its focus to the winter period, including 
preparations for its festive offering (with 600 bookings) and the constant stream of 
weddings, events and conferencing.
 
Activate Fitness continues to succeed with an increase both in memberships and 
revenue.  Virtual fitness has now been installed, allowing for expansion of the class 
programme without any additional expenditure of class instructors, helping to generate 
new business and retain existing members.
 
The following outlines the membership base and related revenue pre and post capital 
investment:
 

Page 48

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B

Month/Year Members Income

December 2016 7446 £192’256 per month

November 2018 13569 £308’789 per month

 
Merseycare NHS Foundation Trust, who are an investor in the Active Workforce 
Programme, have recently increased their staff to over 8,000 and therefore increased 
their financial contribution to the service.  Active Workforce now target 18,000 staff 
across organisations.
 
Discussions are ongoing with Public Health regarding changes to Active Sefton 
services.  Living Well Sefton partners will begin working directly with low level referrals 
and delivering weight management and the section are developing a secondary school 
offer.  There will be more of a focus around delivery of the NHS Health Checks service.
 
The October half term saw 1276 visits to Be Active and an 18% increase in income 
from the same period last year.
 
Active Sports are working in partnership with LFC Foundation to deliver a Friday night 
Kicks programme at Netherton Activity Centre, which is the Premier League’s flagship 
community programme using the power of football to inspire young people in some of 
the most high-need areas in England and Wales.
 
Work is ongoing with property services and the business investment team to establish 
a ‘PING Parlour’ in an empty unit at The Strand.  The ‘pop-up’ space filled with table 
tennis tables will provide a fun, accessible venue for passers-by to play for free.  The 
initiative is part of Table Tennis England’s vision to inspire people to get active and 
lead happier, healthier lifestyles by introducing table tennis in places that they already 
visit in their everyday lives.
 
A new cohort of Aspiring Instructors is due to start in February 2019.  Planning is 
underway with Sefton@Work and the adult education service to implement the 
programme.
 
Active Aquatics completed their first disability crash course during October half term 
alongside the Aiming High Team.  The service currently coordinates swimming for 62 
schools, which leads to an average of 2,500 school children accessing the facilities 
per week for swimming alone.  The after-school programme has the following 
registered:
Meadows – 1,000 aquatics members with an 8-month waiting list
Bootle Leisure Centre – 549 aquatics members with a 4-month waiting list
Dunes Splash World – 554 aquatics members with a 2-month waiting list
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX B

Agile working spaces are now fully operational at Netherton Activity Centre and 
Meadows Leisure Centre and Library and the section is continuing its full integration 
into the EIP 2 Localities model.

Page 50

Agenda Item 7



Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

(Adult Social Care 
and Health)

Date of Meeting: 26 February 2019

Subject: Work Programme 2018/19, Scrutiny Review Topics and Key 
Decision Forward Plan

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer

Wards Affected: All

Cabinet Portfolio: Adult Social Care and Health and Wellbeing
Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To (a) submit to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee its Work Programme for the 
remainder of the Municipal Year 2018/19 and note that any additional agenda items 
requested may be included within the Work Programme for 2019/20; (b) note that 
consideration of any new Working Group(s) will be deferred until 2019/20; (c) identify 
any items for pre-scrutiny by the Committee from the latest Key Decision Forward 
Plan; (d) note the arrangements made for the scrutiny of draft Quality Accounts for 
2019; (e) note the progress to date by the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for 
Cheshire and Merseyside (Orthopaedic Services) and the Member representatives on 
the Joint Committee for 2018/19; and (f) note the arrangements made for a site visit to 
Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, in order to view facilities in relation 
to A&E and older people’s care, at the Trust.

Recommendations:

That:-

(1) the Work Programme for 2018/19, as set out in Appendix A to the report, be 
noted, along with any additional items to be included within the Work 
Programme for 2019/20 and thereon be agreed;

(2) the Committee is requested to note that consideration of any new Working 
Group(s) will be deferred until 2019/20;

(3) the Committee is requested to consider items for pre-scrutiny from the Key 
Decision Forward Plan as set out in Appendix B to the report, which fall under 
the remit of the Committee and any agreed items be included in the Work 
Programme referred to in (1) above;

(4) the Committee is requested to note the arrangements made for the scrutiny of 
draft Quality Accounts for 2019;

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



(5) the Committee is requested to note the progress to date by the Joint Health 
Scrutiny Committee for Cheshire and Merseyside (Orthopaedic Services) and 
the Member representatives on the Joint Committee for 2018/19.

(6) the Committee is requested to note the arrangements made for a site visit to 
Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, in order to view facilities in 
relation to A&E and older people’s care, at the Trust.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To determine the Work Programme of items to be considered during the Municipal Year 
2018/19; identify scrutiny review topics which would demonstrate that the work of the 
Overview and Scrutiny “adds value” to the Council; and update on work that falls under 
the remit of the Committee.

The pre-scrutiny process assists Cabinet Members to make effective decisions by 
examining issues before making formal decisions.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

No alternative options have been considered as the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
needs to approve its Work Programme and identify scrutiny review topics.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Any financial 
implications arising from the consideration of a key decision or relating to a 
recommendation arising from a Working Group review will be reported to Members at the 
appropriate time.

(A) Revenue Costs – see above

(B) Capital Costs – see above

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets): None

Legal Implications: None

Equality Implications: There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: None directly applicable to this report but reference in 
the Work Programme to the approval of and monitoring of recommendations relating 
to this Purpose will help to protect vulnerable members of Sefton’s communities.

Page 52

Agenda Item 8



Facilitate confident and resilient communities: None directly applicable to this report 

Commission, broker and provide core services: None directly applicable to this report 

Place – leadership and influencer: None directly applicable to this report.

Drivers of change and reform: None directly applicable to this report 

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: None directly applicable to this report 

Greater income for social investment: None directly applicable to this report 

Cleaner Greener: None directly applicable to this report 

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Work Programme and Key Decision Forward Plan Report is not subject to FD/LD 
consultation. Any specific financial and legal implications arising from the consideration 
of a key decision will be subsequently reported to Members in an appropriate manner.

The Head of Adult Social Care has been consulted in the preparation of this report.

(B) External Consultations 

Not applicable

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Debbie Campbell
Telephone Number: 0151 934 2254
Email Address: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk 

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report:-

 Appendix A - Work Programme for 2018/19;
 Appendix B - Latest Key Decision Forward Plan - items relating to this Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee.

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 53

Agenda Item 8

mailto:debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk


Introduction/Background

1. WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

1.1 The Work Programme of items submitted to the Committee for consideration during 
the Municipal Year 2018/19 is attached at Appendix A to the report. The 
programme was produced in liaison with the appropriate Heads of Service, whose 
roles fall under the remit of the Committee.

1.2 Members are requested to consider whether there are any other items that they 
wish the Committee to consider, that fall within the terms of reference of the 
Committee. A Work Programme will be submitted to each meeting of the 
Committee during 2019/20 and updated, as appropriate. 

1.3 The Committee is requested to note the Work Programme for 2018/19 and 
note that additional items may be included within the Programme for the 
next Municipal Year, 2019/20.

2. SCRUTINY REVIEW TOPICS 2018/19

2.1 During 2018/19, the Committee has considered the establishment of a working 
group on missed primary care appointments (DNAs). However, the Clinical 
Commissioning Groups have requested deferring the establishment of a working 
group for this topic until the next Municipal Year, 2019/20, as they are likely to 
assume delegated responsibility for the commissioning of general practitioner 
services after 1 April 2019.

2.2 At the last meeting of the Committee held on 8 January 2019, the Committee 
resolved that:-

(2) the appointment of a Working Group on missed primary care appointments 
(DNAs) be deferred until after 1 April 2019;

2.3 The Committee is requested to note that consideration of any new Working 
Group(s) will be deferred until the next Municipal Year, 2019/20.

3. PRE-SCRUTINY OF ITEMS IN THE KEY DECISION FORWARD PLAN

3.1 Members may request to pre-scrutinise items from the Key Decision Forward Plan 
which fall under the remit (terms of reference) of this Committee. The Forward 
Plan, which is updated each month, sets out the list of items to be submitted to the 
Cabinet for consideration during the next four-month period.

3.2 The pre-scrutiny process assists the Cabinet Members to make effective 
decisions by examining issues beforehand and making recommendations prior to 
a determination being made.

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



3.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board has requested that only those key 
decisions that fall under the remit of each Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
should be included on the agenda for consideration.

3.4 The latest Forward Plan is attached at Appendix B for this purpose. For ease of 
identification, items listed on the Forward Plan for the first time appear as shaded. 

3.5 There are 2 items within the current Plan that falls under the remit of the Committee 
on this occasion, namely:-

 Adult Social Care Domiciliary Care; and
 Medically Managed Residential Drug and Alcohol Detoxification Service.

3.6 Should Members require further information in relation to any item on the Key 
Decision Forward Plan, would they please contact the relevant Officer named 
against the item in the Plan, prior to the Meeting.

3.7 The Committee is invited to consider items for pre-scrutiny from the Key 
Decision Forward Plan as set out in Appendix B to the report, which fall 
under the remit of the Committee and any agreed items be included in the 
Work Programme referred to in (1) above.

4. DRAFT QUALITY ACCOUNTS - PROCESS TO BE UNDERTAKEN IN 2019

4.1 Quality Accounts are annual reports from providers of NHS healthcare 
organisations about the quality of the services provided and are available for the 
public to view.

4.2 At the last meeting of the Committee, held on 8 January 2019, the Committee 
resolved that:-

“(4) with regard to the process to be undertaken for the scrutiny of draft Quality 
Accounts in 2019, an informal daytime meeting be convened to consider four 
draft Quality Accounts, a representative of the Clinical Commissioning 
Groups (CCGs) to be requested to attend the meeting, together with 
Healthwatch representatives, the draft Quality Accounts from the following 
NHS Trusts to be considered:-

 Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust, insofar as the Trust provides community 
health services in the south of the Borough; 

 Lancashire Care NHS Foundation Trust, as the Trust provides community health 
services in the north of the Borough;

 Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust; and 
 Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust.” (Minute No. 45 (4) refers).

4.3 Arrangements have now been made for an informal meeting to be held on Friday, 
10 May 2019, at Formby Professional Development Centre, at 10.00 a.m. – 
3.00 p.m.

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



4.4 The Committee is requested to note the arrangements made for the scrutiny 
of draft Quality Accounts for 2019.

5. JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR CHESHIRE AND MERSEYSIDE 
(ORTHOPAEDIC SERVICES)

5.1 Following decisions taken by Knowsley, Liverpool and Sefton Councils, that the 
proposals concerning Orthopaedic Services constitute a substantial variation in 
services, a Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for Cheshire and Merseyside 
(Orthopaedic Services) has been established to scrutinise proposals by the Healthy 
Liverpool Programme regarding the future provision of Orthopaedic Services.

5.2 The first meeting of the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee took place on 21 June 
2017.

5.3 Site visits to view facilities at Broadgreen Hospital took place during September 
2017 and also at Aintree Hospital during October 2017.

5.4 A link to agendas and Minutes of the meetings undertaken is below, for information:-

http://councillors.liverpool.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1522&Year=0

5.5 At its meeting on 24 May 2018, the Cabinet agreed that where 3 or less local 
authorities request the scrutiny of a substantial variation to a service, the following 
Members of this Committee will represent the Council:-

Chair (Councillor Page);
Vice-Chair (Councillor Marianne Welsh); and 
One Lib Dem Member (Councillor Dawson)
(Lab 2/Lib Dem 1)

5.6 A further meeting of the Joint Committee has now been requested to consider the 
final proposals and a meeting has been convened on 27 March 2019. Any 
developments will be reported to a future meeting of the Committee.

5.7 The Committee is requested to note the progress to date by the Joint Health 
Scrutiny Committee for Cheshire and Merseyside (Orthopaedic Services) 
and the Member representatives on the Joint Committee for 2018/19.

6. SITE VISIT TO AINTREE UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

6.1 At a recent informal meeting between the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Committee 
with Healthwatch Sefton representatives, the Chair asked for a request to be 
made to Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust as to whether a site 
visit could be arranged for Members of the Committee, in order to view facilities in 
relation to A&E and older people’s care, at the Trust.

6.2 An approach has been made to the Trust and initial discussions have taken place 
with the Chief Nurse who has indicated that the Trust would be delighted to host a 
visit.

Page 56

Agenda Item 8

http://councillors.liverpool.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1522&Year=0


6.3 Arrangements have now been made for a site visit to be held on Monday, 10 
June 2019, 9.00 a.m. – 11.00 a.m.

6.4 Members of the Committee will be advised of final arrangements once they are 
made, nearer the above-mentioned date.

6.5 The Committee is requested to note the arrangements made for a site visit 
to Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, in order to view 
facilities in relation to A&E and older people’s care, at the Trust.

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

1
18/02/19

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH)

WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

Date of Meeting 26 JUNE 18 04 SEPTEMBER 18 16 OCTOBER 18 08 JANUARY 19 26 FEBRUARY 19
Regular Reports:-
Cabinet Member Update Report X X X X X

Work Programme Update
(Debbie Campbell)

X X X X X

CCGs’ Update Report X X X X X

Health Provider Performance Dashboard
(CCGs)

X X X X X

Service Operational Reports:-
Public Health Annual Report
(Steve Gowland)

X

Community Equipment Store Review
(Sharon Lomax)

X

Effectiveness of Local Authority Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees – Government Response 
to DCLG Select Committee Report
(Paul Fraser)

X

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 8



APPENDIX A

2
18/02/19

Item 26 JUNE 18 04 SEPTEMBER 18 16 OCTOBER 18 08 JANUARY 19 26 FEBRUARY 19
The Lives We Want To Lead - The Local 
Government Association's Green Paper for 
Adult Social Care and Wellbeing
(Sharon Lomax)

X

Draft Quality Accounts - Process to be 
Undertaken
(Debbie Campbell)

X

CCGs’ Updates
Finance Allocations Update X

Primary Care Strategies X
Medicines Management in Sefton X
DNA Rates in Primary Care X

NHS Updates:-
GP Primary Care Strategy
(CCGs & NHS England)

X

Southport & Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust X

NHS Planning Guidance (CCGs) X
North West Ambulance Service - Data for Local 
Area

X

Scrutiny Review
Progress Report:
Residential and Care Homes Working Group - 
Update Report
(Neil Watson)

X

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 8



APPENDIX B

1

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

FOR THE FOUR MONTH PERIOD 1 MARCH 2019 - 30 JUNE 2019

This Forward Plan sets out the details of the key decisions which the Cabinet, individual Cabinet 
Members or Officers expect to take during the next four-month period.  The Plan is rolled forward 
every month and is available to the public at least 28 days before the beginning of each month.

A Key Decision is defined in the Council's Constitution as:

1. any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 
approved by the Council and which requires a gross budget expenditure, saving or virement 
of more than £100,000 or more than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the 
greater;

2. any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact on a significant 
number of people living or working in two or more Wards

Anyone wishing to make representations about any of the matters listed below may do so by 
contacting the relevant officer listed against each Key Decision, within the time period indicated.

Under the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the Council's Constitution, a Key 
Decision may not be taken, unless:

 it is published in the Forward Plan;
 5 clear days have lapsed since the publication of the Forward Plan; and
 if the decision is to be taken at a meeting of the Cabinet, 5 clear days’ notice of the meeting 

has been given.

The law and the Council's Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made, even though 
they have not been included in the Forward Plan in accordance with Rule 26 (General Exception) 
and Rule 28 (Special Urgency) of the Access to Information Procedure Rules.

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the Town Hall, Oriel Road, Bootle L20 
7AE or accessed from the Council's website: www.sefton.gov.uk 

 Council Constitution
 Forward Plan
 Reports on the Key Decisions to be taken
 Other documents relating to the proposed decision may be submitted to the decision making 

meeting and these too will be made available by the contact officer named in the Plan
 The minutes for each Key Decision, which will normally be published within 5 working days 

after having been made

Some reports to be considered by the Cabinet/Council may contain exempt information and will 
not be made available to the public. The specific reasons (Paragraph No(s)) why such reports are 
exempt are detailed in the Plan and the Paragraph No(s) and descriptions are set out below:-

Page 61

Agenda Item 8

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


APPENDIX B

2

1. Information relating to any individual
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 

 authority holding that information)
4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or        
negotiations in connection with any labour relations matter  arising between the authority or a 
Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the Authority
5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in 
legal proceedings
6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes a) to give under any enactment a notice 
under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed  on a person; or b) to make an order or 
direction under any enactment
7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, 
investigation or prosecution of crime
8. Information falling within paragraph 3 above is not exempt information by virtue of that 
paragraph if it is required to be registered under—

(a) the Companies Act 1985;
(b) the Friendly Societies Act 1974;
(c) the Friendly Societies Act 1992;
(d) the Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978;
(e) the Building Societies Act 1986; or
(f) the Charities Act 1993.

9.Information is not exempt information if it relates to proposed development for which the local 
planning authority may grant itself planning permission pursuant to regulation 3 of the Town and 
Country Planning General Regulations 1992
10. Information which—

(a) falls within any of paragraphs 1 to 7 above; and
(b) is not prevented from being exempt by virtue of paragraph 8 or 9 above,is exempt 

information if and so long, as in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Cabinet and Council which are held 
at the Town Hall, Oriel Road, Bootle or the Town Hall, Lord Street, Southport.  The dates and 
times of the meetings are published on www.sefton.gov.uk or you may contact the Democratic 
Services Section on telephone number 0151 934 2068.

NOTE:  
For ease of identification, items listed within the document for the first time will appear shaded.

Margaret Carney
Chief Executive

Page 62

Agenda Item 8

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


APPENDIX B

3

FORWARD PLAN INDEX OF ITEMS

Item Heading Officer Contact
Adult Social Care Domiciliary Care Neil Watson neil.watson@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 

0151 934 3744
Medically Managed Residential Drug & 
Alcohol Detoxification Service

Alan McGee alan.mcgee@sefton.gov.uk

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX B

4

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Adult Social Care Domiciliary Care  
To update Cabinet on Adult Social Care Domiciliary Care.

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 7 Mar 2019 
Decision due date for Cabinet changed from 07/02/2019 to 
07/03/2019.  Reason: to allow more time for options to be 
appraised

Key Decision Criteria Financial No Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Adult Social Care

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Adult Social Care Senior Managers; Cabinet Member - Adult 
Social Care

Method(s) of Consultation Meetings and emails.

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Adult Social Care Domiciliary Care

Contact Officer(s) details Neil Watson neil.watson@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 3744

Page 64

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX B

5

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Medically Managed Residential Drug & Alcohol 
Detoxification Service  
Request to exercise 2 x remaining contract continuation 
options.

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 7 Mar 2019 
Decision due date for Cabinet changed from 07/02/2019 to 
07/03/2019.  Reason: To discuss the length of the contract 
continuation options with the Cabinet Member - Health and 
Wellbeing

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Adult Social Care

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Cabinet Member, Service Provider, Key Stakeholders 
including Adult Social Care

Method(s) of Consultation Meetings, emails

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Medically Managed Residential Drug & Alcohol 
Detoxification Service

Contact Officer(s) details Alan McGee alan.mcgee@sefton.gov.uk

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 North West Ambulance Service - Data for Local Area
	5 Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Update Report
	6 Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Health Provider Performance Dashboard
	7 Cabinet Member Reports
	Appendix A_Adult Social Care - Feb 2019
	Appendix B_Feb 2019 Cabinet Member OS Update209520

	8 Work Programme Key Decision Forward Plan
	Appendix A_Work Prog
	Appendix B_KDFP


